

NATIONAL GUIDELINE ON CLINICAL MANAGEMENT OF CHIKUNGUNYA FEVER













Disease Control Unit (CDC) Directorate General of Health Services, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare **National Guideline on** 

**Clinical Management of Chikungunya Fever** 

First Published: 15<sup>th</sup> May 2017 **Published by:** Disease Control unit (CDC) Directorate General of Health Services (DGHS), Bangladesh

# **Chief Adviser**

Professor Dr. Sanya Tahmina Director, Disease Control and Line Director, Communicable Disease Control (CDC) And National Focal Point, IHR Directorate General of Health services

# **Editors of Compiled Guideline: Editor in Chief**

Professor Dr. Meerjady Sabrina Flora Director, IEDCR and NIC, Bangladesh

# **Editorial Board:**

- 1. Prof. Anup Kumar Saha, Professor of Medicine, Sir Salimullah Medical College
- 2. Prof Dr. Titu Miah, Professor of Medicine, Dhaka Medical College
- 3. Prof. Syeda Afroza, Professor & Head Paediatrics, MHSMC
- 4. Dr. Tahmina Shirin, Professor (cc), Chief Scientific Officer, Department of Virology, IEDCR, NIC, BAN
- 5. Professor Kabirul Bashar, Professor, Jahangirnagar University, Dhaka
- 6. Dr. Rubina Yasmin, Associate Professor, Medicine, Dhaka Dental College
- 7. Dr. Monira Pervin, Associate Professor, and Head of Department, Virology, DMCH
- 8. Dr. Iffat Ara Shamsad , Associate Professor, Paediatrics, DMCH
- 9. Dr. Sharifun Nahar, Associate Professor, Paediatrics, SSMCH
- 10. Dr. AKM Monjurul Haque, AD (DC), CDC, DGHS
- 11. Dr. SM. Rashedul Islam, Asst Professor, Dept of virology, BSMMU
- 12. Dr. Motlabur Rahman, Asst Professor, Medicine, DMCH
- 13. Dr. Selim Shahi, Asst Professor, NINS
- 14. Dr. Md. Abdullah Yusuf, Asst Professor of Microbiology, NINS
- 15. Dr. M. Salimuzzanman, PSO, IEDCR
- 16. Dr. Ahmed Nawsher Alam, PSO, IEDCR
- 17. Dr. ASM Alamgir , SSO, IEDCR
- 18. Dr. SM Golam Kaiser, DPM, Emerging & Re -emerging Diseases, CDC, DGHS
- 19. Dr. Hafizul Islam, DPM, IHR, Emerging Diseases & Migration Health, CDC, DGHS
- 20. Dr M M Aktaruzzaman, DPM, Malaria, Dengue, Chikunguniya & Zika, CDC, DGHS
- 21. Dr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman, Medical Officer, IEDCR

- 22. Dr. Umme Ruman Siddiqi, Evaluator, Disease Control, DGHS
- 23. Dr. Md. Riyad Hasan, Evaluator, CDC, DGHS
- 24. Dr. Farhana Haque , Outbreak investigation Officer, ICCDR'B
- 25. Dr Pulak Mutsuddy, consultant, Dengue and Chikunguniya

# **Coordinator & Member Secretary**

Dr. Md. Nasir Ahmed Khan Assistant Director, (Disaster), IHR, Emerging Diseases & Migration Health, CDC, DGHS



# National Guideline FOR CLINICAL MANAGEMENT OF CHIKUNGUNYA FEVER

First Published: 15<sup>th</sup> May 2017

Published by: NATIONAL FOCAL POINT FOR IHR

Directorate General of Health Services (DGHS), Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Bangladesh

# List of Abbreviation and Acronyms

CDC, DGHS	: Communicable Disease Control, Directorate General of Health Services		
DGHS	: Directorate General of Health Services		
DRRT	: District Rapid Response Team		
HEB	: Health Education Bureau		
Icddr.b	: International Center for Diarrheal Disease Research, Bangladesh		
IEDCR	: Institute of Epidemiology, Disease Control and Research		
IHR	: International Health Regulation 2005		
IHR NFP	: National Focal Point for International Health Regulation 2005(Director, DC,		
	DGHS)		
IPC	: Infection Prevention and Control		
IPH	: Institute of Public Health		
IPHN	: Institute of Public Health Nutrition		
LD CDC	: Line Director, Communicable Disease Control		
NIPSOM	: National Institute of Preventive and Social Medicine		
NNS	: National Nutrition Services		
NRRT	: National Rapid Response Team		
OIE	: Office International des Epizooties (World Organization for Animal Health)		
PHEIC	: Public Health Emergency of International Concern		
PoE	: Port of Entry		
RRT	: Rapid Response Team		
SOP	: Standard Operating Procedure		
URRT	: Upazila Rapid Response Team		
UNICEF	: United Nations Children's Fund		
WHA	: World Health Assembly		
WHO	: World Health Organization		
ZIKV	: Zika Virus		

# Contents

Chapter	Name of the Chapter	Page No.
1	Introduction	8
2	Epidemiology	8
3	Vector	9
4	Transmission cycle	9
5	Case Definition	11
6	Criteria for identification of Chikungunya	12
	Infection	
7	Clinical criteria	12
8	Clinical classification of Chikungunya Fever	14
9	Clinical course & outcome	15
10	Differential Diagnosis	16
11	Principles of management	18
12	Home management	19
13	Hospital Management	20
14	Treatment of Serious Complication	22
15	Special Situation	23
16	Routine Laboratory Investigations	23

#### Introduction

Chikungunya fever (CF) is a viral illness caused by an arbovirus transmitted by the Aedes mosquitoes. The disease was documented first time in the form of an outbreak in Tanzania. The name is derived from the 'makonde' dialect which means 'that which bends up', indicating the physical appearance of a patient with severe clinical features. The fever locally also named as 'Langra Jor' (ল্যাংড়া জ্ব).

Chikungunya fever is caused by virus of Chikungunya virus (CHIKV) which is an RNA virus that belongs to the *Alphavirus* genus of the *Togaviridae*, the family that comprises a number of viruses that are mostly transmitted by arthropods. The virus was first isolated in 1952-1953 from both man and mosquitoes during an epidemic of fever that was considered clinically indistinguishable from dengue fever in Tanzania. It is a single stranded RNA virus, heat labile and sensitive to temperatures above 58<sup>o</sup> C. Three lineages with distinct genotypic and antigenic characteristics have been identified: two phyllogenetic lineages from Africa and one from Asia. Chikungunya virus strains isolated in India during the 2004-2006 outbreaks are closely related to strains isolated from Réunion islands.

#### Epidemiology

In the South-East Asia region, Chikungunya virus is maintained in the human population by a human-mosquito-human transmission cycle that differs from the sylvatic transmission cycle described on the African continent. A high vector density is seen in the post monsoon season that enhances the transmission. Chikungunya fever epidemics display cyclical and seasonal trends. There is an inter-epidemic period of 4-8 years (sometimes as long as 20 years). Outbreaks are most likely to occur in post-monsoon period when the vector density is very high. Human beings serve as the Chikungunya virus reservoir during epidemic periods. During inter-epidemic periods, a number of vertebrates have been identified as reservoirs. These include monkeys, rodents, birds, and other vertebrates. The exact nature of the reservoir status in South-East Asia Region has not been documented. After an extensive outbreak during the beginning of current millennium in the French territory of Reunion Islands in the Indian Ocean, the disease has been reported from almost 60 countries from various WHO regions including South-East Asia. The spread of the disease in South India from 2004 has affected millions of people and left many with crippling disabilities. The disease continues to cause epidemics in many countries in the region. There is no significant sex predilection and the virus causes illness in almost all age groups. As this is an illness not sufficiently covered in medical curriculum, it has become necessary to develop new guidelines, based on the limited clinical experience from managing patients in the region.

#### Vector

Chikungunya virus is transmitted by Aedes mosquitoes (*Ae. Aegypti & Ae. albopictus*) which breed in clean water collections in containers, tanks, disposables, junk material in domestic and peri-domestic situations besides natural habitats like tree holes, plantations etc. Like Dengue its transmission is also related to rainfall and temperature. In recent years, it has been observed that during the period of monsoon and post-monsoon there is an upsurge in the cases because population of the vector fluctuates with rainfall and its life span is influenced by temperature and humidity. A high vector density in the post-monsoon season enhances virus transmission. *Aedes aegypti* is the main vector of transmission of Chikungunya in Bangladesh. However, *Aedes albopictus* has

also been found to be playing a part in some areas. They are principally day biters. Eggs of these vectors have the ability to withstand desiccation for more than a year. This could result in the virus to remain in nature for long periods and cause outbreaks. Flight range of these vector mosquitoes are less making the outbreaks to occur in clusters, especially in congested localities. Recently, it has also been shown that viraemia are quite high and infected mosquitoes could transmit the disease to more than one person since small amounts of blood in the proboscis still carry large quantity of virus. Aedes mosquitoes take multiple feeds per day and it would also result in small focal outbreaks. In the initial part of outbreak, individual population is not protected which could result in larger outbreaks.

#### **Transmission Cycle**

The human infections are acquired by the bite of infected Ae. aegypti /Ae. Albopictus mosquitoes, which are day biters and epidemics are sustained by human-mosquito-human transmission. The incubation period (time from infection to illness) can be 2-12 days, but is usually 3-7 days. Acute Chikungunya fever typically lasts a few days to a couple of weeks, but some patients have prolonged fatigue lasting several weeks. Additionally, some patients have reported incapacitating joint pain, or arthritis which may last for weeks or months. The prolonged joint pain associated with CHIKV is not typical of dengue. Co-circulation of dengue fever in many areas may mean that Chikungunya fever cases are sometimes clinically misdiagnosed as dengue infections, therefore the incidence of Chikungunya fever could be much higher than what has been previously reported. No deaths, neuro-invasive cases, or hemorrhagic cases related to CHIKV infection have been conclusively documented in the scientific literature.

# **Case definition**

Chikungunya Fever should be suspected when a person develops sudden onset of fever, joint manifestations and rash.

Cases are to be categorized as:

- a) Possible case: a patient meeting only clinical criteria
- b) **Probable case:** a patient meeting both the clinical and epidemiological criteria
- c) **Confirmed case:** a patient meeting the laboratory criteria, irrespective of the clinical presentation

# Criteria for the Identification of Chikungunya Infection

### **Clinical criteria**

- acute onset of fever >38.5°C
- severe arthralgia/arthritis not explained by other medical conditions

# **Epidemiological criteria**

- Residing or having visited epidemic areas
- having reported transmission within 15 days prior to the onset of symptoms

Laboratory Criteria: at least one of the following tests in the acute phase:

- Virus isolation by Cell Culture
- Presence of viral RNA by real Time RT-PCR (Within 5 days of onset of Illness)
- Presence of viral specific IgM antibody in single serum sample collected within 5 to 28 days of onset Fever
- Four-fold Rise of IgG antibody in samples collected at least three weeks apart (1<sup>st</sup> sample after 7 days )

## **Clinical Presentation**

Common	Infrequent	Rare in adults but seen in
		children
Fever	Stomatitis	Photophobia
Arthritis/	Oral ulcers	Retro-orbital pain
Arthralgia	Exfoliative dermatitis	Vomiting
Backache	Photosensitive	Diarrhoea
Headache	hyperpigmentation	Mental confusion
Rash		Signs of meningeal irritation

#### Table 1: Clinical features of Chikungunya fever

#### Fever

The fever varies from low grade to high grade, lasting usually for 24 to 48 hours. Fever rises abruptly in some, reaching 39-40<sup>o</sup>C, with chills and rigor, no diurnal variation, usually subsides with use of antipyretics.

#### Joint manifestation

The joint symptoms usually start with arthralgia or arthritis. Involvement is symmetric and often ankles wrists and small joints of the hand are the worst affected. Migratory polyarthritis with effusions may be seen, but resolves in the majority. Larger joints like knee and shoulder and spine were also involved. Pain tends to be worse in the morning, relieved by mild exercise and exacerbated by aggressive movements. The pain may be relieved for 2-3 days and then reappear in a saddle back pattern. There is a tendency for early and more significant involvement of joints with some trauma or degeneration. The classical bending phenomenon was probably due to the lower limb and back involvement which forced the patient to stoop down and bend forward.













in children. Most skin lesions recovered completely except in cases where the photosensitive hyperpigmentation persisted. Stomatitis and oral ulcers also observed.

#### Neurological manifestation

Neurologic manifestations of meningo-encephalitis, encephalitis, acute encephalopathy Guillain-Barré syndrome and myelitis were reported.

#### **Ocular manifestation**

Neuro-retinitis and uveitis in one or both eyes may occur. The main ocular manifestation associated with the recent epidemic outbreak of chikungunya virus infection in South India included granulomatous and nongranulomatous anterior uveitis, optic neuritis, retrobulbar neuritis, and dendritic lesions. Majority of the patients recover with good vision.

# **Clinical Classification of Chikungunya Fever**

Chikungunya fever is classified in to three categoriesbased on severity of clinical presentation.

# Mild

- Low grade fever
- Mild artharlgia
- Mild focal myalgia
- General weakness
- Skin rash/itching

# Moderate

- Low to high grade persistent fever
- Moderate arthralgia /arthritis
- Generalized myalgia

- Hypotension
- Mild bleeding
- Retro-orbital pain
- Oliguria

#### Severe

- Persistent high grade fever
- Severe arthralgia/Arthritis
- Persistent vomiting / Diarrhoea
- Altered sensorium
- Bleeding (GI bleeding due to use of drugs e.g. analgesics)
- Shock due to persistent vomiting and diarrhoea

### **High Risk group**

Chikungunya infection with one of the following conditions may be considered as high risk.

a) Co-morbid condition

Hypertension, Diabetic, CAD/CVD, Geriatric age, Pregnancy, COPD,

**b**) Co-infection

Dengue, Tuberculosis, Enteric fever, Pneumonia, HIV, Malaria

# **Clinical course and outcome**

- Acute symptoms typically resolve within 7–10 days
- Some patients might have relapse of rheumatologic symptoms (e.g., polyarthralgia, polyarthritis, tenosynovitis) in months following acute illness

- In variable proportions of patients, joint painmay persist for months to years.
- Rare complications include
  - uveitis, retinitis, myocarditis, hepatitis, nephritis, bullous skin lesions, hemorrhage, meningoencephalitis, myelitis, Guillain-Barré syndrome, and cranial nerve palsies may develop

## **Differential diagnosis**

Some of the diseases which can be considered in differential diagnosis are:

- (1) **Dengue fever**: Severe backpain with purpuras or active bleeding might suggest dengue fever. Confirmatory laboratory diagnosis is possible.
- (2) **Reactive Arthritis**: In general, any arthritis that follows a febrile gastrointestinal or genitourinary infection (triggering microbes) is considered a reactive acute inflammatory arthritis if it lasts less than six months. The hallmark feature is enthesitis where collagenous structures such as tendons and ligaments insert into bone are involved. Oral mucosal ulcers are seen.
- (3)**Serum sickness illness**: Polyarthritis may be associated with a serum sickness type reaction caused by vaccine, medication or other viral infections
- (4) **Rickettsial disease** can present with fever, rash and joint pains. Confirm by serology.
- (5) **Rheumatic fever**: More common in the children and presents with fleeting (migratory) polyarthritis predominantly affecting the large joints. Modified Jones criteria should be the basis for diagnosis. Raised ASO titre and a history of recurrent sore throat are other points to be noted.

- (6) Malaria: patient can present with high fevers and may also complain of joint pains. Periodicity of fever and alteration of consciousness / seizures should prompt a diagnosis for malaria
- (7) **Leptospirosis**: Severe myalgia localized to calf muscles with conjunctival congestion/ or subconjunctival haemorrhage with or without oliguria or jaundice in a person with history of skin contact to contaminated water would suggest Leptospirosis

Clinical and laboratory features of chikungunya virus infections compared with dengue virus infections

Chikungunya		Dengue
Fever (>38.5°C)	+++	++
Arthralgia	+++	+/-
Arthritis	+	-
Headache	++	++
Rash	++	+
Myalgia	+	++
Hemorrhage	+/-	++
Shock	-	+
Lymphopenia	+++	++
Neutropenia	+	+
Thrombocytopenia	+	+++
Hemoconcentration	-	++

# Chikungunya and dengue

- Difficult to distinguish chikungunya and dengue based on clinical findings alone
- Chikungunya and dengue viruses transmitted by the same mosquitoes

- The viruses can circulate in the same area and cause occasional coinfections in the same patient
- Chikungunya virus more likely to cause high fever, severe polyarthralgia, arthritis, rash, and lymphopenia
- Dengue virus more likely to cause neutropenia, thrombocytopenia, hemorrhage, shock, and death
- Patients with suspected chikungunya should be managed as dengue until dengue has been ruled out
- Proper clinical management of dengue reduces the risk of medical complications and death
- Aspirin and other NSAIDs can increase the risk of hemorrhage in patients with dengue

# **Principles of Management**

Mild and moderate cases can be managed at home. Severe cases should be managed at hospital.

#### A. Home Management

- Consume plenty of water with electrolytes (approximately 2 litres of home available fluids with salt in 24 hours).
- Take paracetamol tablets during periods of fever (up to 1000 mg tablets four times daily), in persons with no preexisting liver or kidney disease. Children may be given 50-60 mg per kg body weight per day in divided doses.
- Adequate rest in a warm environment
- Cold compresses may help in reducing joint damage. Heat may increase/worsen joint pain and is therefore best to avoid during acute stage.
- Refrain from exertion. Mild forms of exercise and physiotherapy are recommended in recovering persons.

- Avoid self medication with aspirin or NSAIDs.
- Antihistamines can be used for itching.

#### **B.** Admission criteria

- 1. If the person is hemo-dynamically unstable (frequent syncopal attacks, hypotension with a systolic BP less than 90 mmHg or a pulse pressure less than 30 mmHg),
- 2. oliguria (urine output less than 500 ml in 24 hours),
- 3. altered sensorium
- 4. bleeding manifestations
- 5. persons not responding or having persistent joint pain or disabling arthritis even after three days of symptomatic treatment
- 6. persons above sixty years
- 7. infants (below one year of age)
- 8. Pregnancy
- 9. High risk Group

#### C. Hospital management

- Assess for dehydration and institute proper rehydration therapy. (5% DNS, Normal Saline, & baby saline for paediatric cases)
- Take paracetamol tablets during periods of fever (up to 1000 mg tablets four times daily), in persons with no preexisting liver or kidney disease. Children may be given 50-60 mg per kg body weight per day in divided doses.
- Antibiotics can be used to treat secondary bacterial infection.
- Antihistamines can be used for itching.
- Cold compresses may help in reducing joint damage.Heat may increase/worsen joint pain and is therefore best to avoid during acute stage.
- Refrain from exertion.

- Mild forms of exercise and physiotherapy are recommended in recovering persons.
- Aspirin or NSAIDs should be avoided during first 10 days. NSAIDs can be used in Chikungunya only when Dengue fever is adequately excluded.
- Cutaneous manifestations with topical or systemic drugs, and neuropsychiatric problems with specialist care and drugs).
- Steroid has no role in acute stage.
- In cases with ophthalmic symptoms complications, consult with ophthalmologists.

#### **Treatment of serious complications**

- Bleeding disorders with blood components- platelet transfusions in case of bleeding with platelet counts of less than 50,000 cells per cu mm., fresh frozen plasma, or Vitamin K injections if prothrombin time INR is more than 2.
- Hypotension with fluids/ inotropics, acute renal failure with dialysis, contractures and deformities with physiotherapy/surgery,
- Patients with myo-pericarditis or meningoencephalitis may require intensive care with regular monitoring, inotropic support, ventilation etc.
- Anti-neuralgic drugs (Amitryptyline, Carbamazepine, Gabapentin, and Pregabalin) can be used in standard doses in disturbing neuropathies.
- Use hydroxychloroquine 200 mg orally once daily or chloroquin phosphate 300 mg orally per day for a period of four weeks in cases where arthralgia is refractory to other drugs.
- Hyperpigmentation and papular eruptions can be managed with Zinc oxide cream and/or Calamine lotion

# **Special Situation**

# **Effect on pregnancy**

Chikungunya fever **appears to have a direct impact on pregnancy** with rare reports of spontaneous abortions and mother-to-child transmission in perinatal period.

### **Effect on neonates**

Mothers afflicted with Chikungunya fever in the perinatal period (-4 days to +1 days before/after delivery) can transmit Chikungunya fever to neonates by vertical transmission. Caesarean section does not appear to prevent transmission. Neonatal CHIK fever is associated with fever, poor feeding, pain, distal edema, various skin manifestations, seizures, meningo-encephalitis, and echocardiographic abnormalities in the newborn. No infants are found to be infected with chikungunya virus through breast feeding. Mothers are encouraged to breast feed their infants.

# **Laboratory Diagnosis**

# **Preferred Specimen:**

- 1) Blood or Serum
- 2) CSF (if neurological features present)

# **Routine Laboratory Investigations**

- CBC
  - Leucopenia (Decreased WBC)
  - Thrombocytopenia: rare
  - ESR: Usually Elevated
- C-Reactive Protein: Increased during the Acute Phase and may remain elevated for a week

• SGPT: Elevated

**Specific Laboratory Investigations**: at least one of the following tests in the acute phase:

- Virus isolation by Cell Culture
- Presence of viral RNA by real Time RT-PCR (Within 5 days of onset of Illness)
- Presence of viral specific IgM antibody in single serum sample collected within 5 to 28 days of onset Fever
- Four-fold Rise of Ig G antibody in samples collected at least three weeks apart (1<sup>st</sup> sample after 7 days )

### N.**B**.:

1. Diagnostic validity of currently available ICT kit for the detection of IgM and IgG for Chikungunya virus is very poor.

2. RT-PCR for Chikungunya is performed only at IEDCR.

# **Public Health Measures**

Patient when infected can spread the infection by spreading the infection through mosquitoes. It is important to break this transmission by minimizing the vector density by community participation and taking appropriate control measures in the hospital setting by following measures.

- Minimizing transmission of infection: This can be done in the following ways:
  - Risk communication to the household members
  - Minimize the vector population
  - Minimize the vector-patient contact (Aedes mosquitoes bite during day time, mostly in the morning and late afternoon)

• Reporting to the nearest public health authority/ or the DPMO

#### **Risk communication to the household members:**

Chikungunya is a disease that is transmitted by mosquitoes. House hold members may also come down with Chikungunya infection as they also share the same environment. Hence, there is no need to isolate the patient or to segregate the patient. It is important to reduce the vector population in the house hold

#### **Reference:**

- 1. Weekly epidemiological record (WER) No. 47, 2007, 82, 409–416.
- 2. Geographical distribution of Chikungunya cases 2001-2007 (data are presented as reporting period followed by estimated number of cases, where data are available)
- **3.** Guidelines on Clinical Management of Chikungunya Fever (Ministry of Health, India)

# স্বাস্থ্য ও পরিবার কল্যাণ মন্ত্রণালয় রোগতত্ত্ব, রোগ নিয়ন্ত্রণ ও গবেষণা ইনস্টিটিউট (আইইডিসিআর) মহাখালী, ঢাকা ১২১২ ফোনঃ +৮৮০-২-৯৮৯৮৭৯৬, ৯৮৯৮৬৯১ ফ্যাক্সঃ +৮৮০-২-৯৮৮০৪৪০ www.iedcr.gov.bd ই-মেইলঃ info@iedcr.gov.bd

২৯ জুলাই ২০১৭

# চিকুনগুনিয়া পরবর্তী আর্থ্রালজিয়া ও আর্থাইটিসে ফিজিওথেরাপি প্রয়োগ বিষয়ে বিশেষজ্ঞ কমিটির মতামত

(১) রোগের পর্যায় অনুযায়ী চিকিৎসা নির্দেশিকা ইতিমধ্যেই প্রণীত হয়েছে (দেখুনঃ National Clinical Management Guidelines of Chikungunya.

<http://iedcr.gov.bd/images/PDF/Health\_Message/chikungunya%20Final.pdf> (২) চিকুনগুনিয়ার তীব্র পর্যায় পার হলে যখন জ্বর থাকে না, তখন চিকিৎসক অন্য জাতীয় ব্যথার ঔষধ (NSAID)

- সেবনের পরামর্শ দিতে পারেন। তবে তার আগে রোগীর ডেঙ্গু নেই তা নিশ্চিত করতে হবে। (ডেঞ্গুর জন্য NS1 এন্টিজেন নিগেটিভ হবে, কমপক্ষে ৪৮ ঘন্টা জ্বর থাকবে না, এবং ডেঙ্গুর কোন বিপদ সংকেত থাকবে না)
- (৩)বিশেষজ্ঞবৃন্দ একমত হয়েছেন যে, তীব্র পর্যায়ে অর্থাৎ জ্বর থাকা পর্যন্ত ফিজিওথেরাপি দেয়া যাবে না। শুধু বরফ বা অন্য কোন ভাবে ঠান্ডা সেঁক দেয়ার পরামর্শ দেয়া যেতে পারে। শরীর ও অস্থি সন্ধি/জোড়ার স্বাভাবিক নাড়াচাড়া চালিয়ে যেতে হবে।
- (8) তীব্র পর্যায় পার হবার পরে অর্থাৎ জ্বর কমার পরে হালকা ব্যায়াম করা যেতে পারে।
  - ক. অস্থিসন্ধি/হাড়জোড়া শক্ত হয়ে যাওয়া এড়াতে হালকা ব্যায়াম এবং অস্থিসন্ধি/হাড়জোড়া সঠিক বিন্যাস বজায় রাখতে হবে। হালকা ব্যায়ামের উদাহরণঃ সমতল জমিনে হাঁটা, হাতের সক্রিয় নাড়াচাড়া ইত্যাদি।
  - খ. তীব্র পর্যায় পার হবার পরে অর্থাৎ জ্বর কমার পরেও যারা অস্থিসন্ধির ব্যথায় ভুগছেন (আর্থাইটিস ও আর্থাইটিস) তাদেরকে হাসপাতালের আর্থ্রালজিয়া ক্লিনিকে যাবার পরামর্শ দেয়া যেতে পারে। আর্থ্রালজিয়া ক্লিনিক ফিজিক্যাল মেডিসিন বিশেষজ্ঞ ও ফিজিওথেরাপিস্ট সাথে পরামর্শ করবে। যে সব রোগীর শারীরিক সুস্থতা নেই এবং স্বাধীনভাবে চলাফেরা করতে পারেন না (প্রতিবন্ধী এবং/অথবা বেশী বয়স্ক, খেলোয়াড় রোগী) তারা ফিজিক্যাল মেডিসিন বিশেষজ্ঞের পরামর্শ নেবেন। এটা একটা নির্দিষ্ট পুনর্বাসন কর্মসূচি বাস্তবায়নের জন্য দরকার হতে পারে।
  - গ. যদি প্রয়োজন হয় অস্থিসন্ধির জন্য ফিজিওথেরাপি চিকিৎসার ব্যবস্থাপত্র দেয়া হবে এবং রোগীকে ফিজিওথেরাপিস্টের কাছে পাঠানো হবে। ক্ষতির পরিমাণ ও রোগের সার্বিক প্রভাবের (ব্যথা, স্বাধীনভাবে নড়াচড়া, জীবনধারার গুণগত মান) ভিত্তিতে ফিজিওথেরাপি প্রদান করা হলে সর্বোচ্চ সুফল পাওয়া যেতে পারে। ফিজিওথেরাপির প্রত্যাশিত সুফলসমূহ হতে পারেঃ ব্যথা চলে যাওয়া, ইচ্ছেমত নড়াচড়া করতে পারা, মাংসপেশীর দৃঢ়তা ঠিক থাকা ।

আরো জানতে হলেঃ

- French guideline for the management of chikungunya (acute and persistent presentations). November 2014. *Medicines et Maladies Infectieuses.* Jume 2015. DOI: 10.1016/j.medmal.2015.05.007
- Specific Management of Post-Chikungunya Rheumatic Disorders: A Retrospective Study of 159 Cases in Reunion Island from 2006-2012. PLosNegl Trop Dis. 2015 Mar; 9(3): e0003603. Published online 2015 Mar 11. Doi: 10.1371/journal.pntd.0003603

স্বা/= (অধ্যাপক মীরজাদী সেব্রিনা ফ্লোরা) পরিচালক আইইডিসিআর তারিখঃ

#### Ministry of Health and Family Welfare Institute of Epidemiology, Disease Control and Research (IEDCR) DGHS, Mohakhali, Dhaka, Bangladesh

#### 29 July, 2017

#### **Opinion of Expert committee on**

# Physiotherapy in post chikungunya arthralgia and arthritis

- 1. Phase-wise treatment guideline is already developed (Ref. National Clinical Management Guidelines of Chikungunya).
- After 7-10 days of acute phase, NSAID can be prescribe by physician if dengue is excluded (NS1 antigen for Dengue is negative, afebrile period of atleast 48 hours and no warning or danger sign of dengue)
- 3. The experts agreed that there is no indication of physiotherapy in acute phase. Only cold compression can be advised. Maintain normal movement of joints and body.
- 4. Mild forms of exercise are recommended in post-acute phase
  - a. Exercises like walking on level grounds, active hand movements and proper posturing of joints to avoid stiffness must be suggested.
  - b. Patients who are suffering for joint pains (arthralgia and arthritis) after acute phase, can be advised to go to arthralgia clinics in hospitals in chronic phase and arthralgia clinic will consult with specialists of physical medicine. Consulting a physical medicine specialist may be considered for patients with loss of physical fitness and of autonomy (disabled and/or elderly patients, athletes) to implement a specific rehabilitation program.
  - c. If necessary a physiotherapy regimen for the joint/joints will be prescribed and the patient may be referred to a physiotherapist. The

benefit of physical medicine depends on lesion assessment and overall impact of the disease (pain, autonomy, quality of life). The expected benefits are pain relief, preserving the range of motion, and muscle tone.

Reference or further reading

- 1. French guidelines for the management of chikungunya (acute and persistent presentations). November 2014. *Mé decine et Maladies Infectieuses · June 2015 DOI: 10.1016/j.medmal.2015.05.007*
- Specific Management of Post-Chikungunya Rheumatic Disorders: A Retrospective Study of 159 Cases in Reunion Island from 2006-2012. PLoSNegl Trop Dis. 2015 Mar; 9(3): e0003603. Published online 2015 Mar 11. doi: 10.1371/journal.pntd.0003603